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iAo INSTANT LA
March/April ISO TION
THIS editorial article is being written in March 1971—much later than is
normal for the March/April issue—as we near the end of the distressing
CONTENTS postal workers’ strike; seven weeks of disruption which have demonstrated
the extent to which we are forced to depend on our postal services. Seven
Bepunid LIFQ anil @raen fea: weeks during which government departments, big firms and combines, and

Elis W. Grahn X S powqrfu_l organisations and groups have improvised means of postal com-
Pessible. UFO-Induced tempo- munication within the country, while the smaller firms and the public could

rary paralysis: only look on and suffer in silence.
Thei;;ig:'gfi‘pjgztvarz vl For Flying Saucer Review, as also for scores of thpusand!; of other small

Dr. W. Buhler 9 enterprises, January 19, 1971, was the day of almost instant isolation. True,
Progiess at Cradie HHI: the telephone service remained in operation, but there were times when even

Charles Bowen 1 that instrument seemed strangely silent. We found ourselves instantly cut off
Mail Bag (A surveyors criti- from most of our sources of information, and in particular from all our

cism: S. E. Scammell) 13 overseas sources; cut off from readers and correspondents; cut off from our
Continued investigations at sources of revenue, from subscribers wishing to renew their subscriptions
Warminster: and from prospective new readers, and unable to send our magazines and
dohn E. Ben.. oL back numbers to anybody. Fortunately a somewhat tenuous contact was
A further examination of the maintained with our printers, thanks to visits to London of their delivery
AT NnBter PHOIORIRRRS vty vans, and production of our magazines has been maintained, although
e aciad SRRl somewhat behind schedule.
"'ﬁa‘?tf] ‘"‘tl ;va'mi{‘“e" i When the stoppage is over, there will no doubt be further delays while
soltsarabap i bhridod _ some sort of order is created out of the chaos, while the millions of letters
Thei‘l:‘izsé'g;‘é?:hg‘fh”' o0 from overseas which have piled up at reception centres since the middle of
A New FSR Catalogue—8 o8 January are sorted and delivered. What a relief it will be once again to receive
: letters, articles, news clippings and subscriptions as soon as the flood gates
Unknown Intelligences under 5
S ans are opened.

Sordon Creighton .. 28 While readers in the United Kingdom have suffered from the dead hand
World Round-up 29 of this strike, we realise that some readers overseas may not have been aware
UFOs and SF: of our difficulties. We feel sure that all British readers would wish to be

Jacques Bergier Az & associated with an apology we make here and now to all those readers in other

Similarities in UFO and Demon parts of the world who, through non-delivery of publications which they have

'°T‘ ordered, have suffered inconvenience as a result of an affair which was not of
anet Gregory 3 ! : - :

our making. Please rest assured that by the time you read these lines we will

1971 have done our best to get deliveries moving again as smoothly as possible.
© Flying Saucer Review Meanwhile we hope everyone will continue to support our endeavours to

Contributions appearing in this produce Flying Saucer Review and FSR Case Histories, and that they will

magazine do not necessarily continue to introduce new readers so that we can close any gaps in our

re, I als : - . - - -

pugjfs‘hiz m{rgjﬁ;ﬁm mailing lists that may have resulted from this unhappy dispute.

Of one thing we can be fairly certain, and that is that while Britain’s

For subscription details and postal workers remained inactive, there is little doubt that UFOs were as
‘ address please see foot of active as ever in some parts of the world, and just as soon as we learn of that

page i of c'over activity, we will pass the news on to you in our columns,



January 6, 1971; the news breaks in Finland

Keskivitkkonn tammikaun 6. pnd 1971

Ufo-kuumetta Kuusamossa:
Lumi JAAtyi  Bisger wik
vihreiksi Apollo 1

Olu'tu {Hi}msditﬁimatan valoilmio hiimmiis-
tytti lukuisia ihmisii Kuusamon Saapungissa sun-| Jossa julkistetasn_teisen
nuntainamuna. Valoilmid, jonka muotoa silminna.| # =
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keensi mv. Mauno Talalan pihamaalle 2x3
metrin laajuisen alueen, jossa lumi oli kovettunut
tummanvihreiksi jdiksi.
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SAAPUNKI UFO AND GREEN

ICE
Elis W. Grahn

Our contributor is a representative and correspondent of Flying Saucer Review in
Finland, and we are indebted to him for sending this and various other items relating
to reports in his country. His activities in recent months have been hindered by
illness, which has resulted in a spell in hospital, and we wish him a speedy recovery

to full health.

AVING noted that in your second number of Fsr

CASE HISTORIES you will include a selection of Finnish
reports from the Pudasjirvi region, I hasten to send
translations of newspaper items newly published in this
country.

Pudasjirvi has experienced quite a “*flap™ during the
last few years, and our Oulu “*UFO-club™ branch of the
Interplanetarians has been very busy with investigations.
The Pudasjirvi article by Matias Pddtalo in the FSR
Case Histories No. 2 is, in effect, a summary of some
of their recent work.

The Finnish UFO wave has been concentrated in the
part of Finland that stretches from Oulu on the coast
of the Gulf of Bothnia eastwards to the border with
the USSR. Kuusamo, where this most recent incident
occurred, is quite close to the Russian border, between
200 and 300 km. from Oulu, and Pudasjarvi is about
half way between these two places. The region consists
mainly of hills and swamps, sparsely populated; a
wilderness with only a few roads between widely-spread
villages.

The two translations which follow are of items which
appeared in the Helsingen Sanomat for January 6 and 8
of 1971. This newspaper is the biggest in the country,
having 900,000 readers out of a total Finnish population
of 4.600,000. Although it has an excellent reputation (o
guard, it does give good, and fair, accounts of the better
UFO reports.

The headline for the January 6 report was:

UFO-FEVER IN KUUSAMO:
SNOW FROZE TO GREEN ICE

“An inexplicable light phenomenon surprised several
people in Kuusamo Saapunki, on Sunday morning. The
light phenomenon, which observers were unable to
describe accurately, left behind an area 2 <3 metres
wide where snow had hardened into dark green ice in
the house yard of farmer Mauno Talala.

“Mr. Talala was drinking coffee when he was inter-
rupted by the light phenomenon; he described it as
‘unnaturally bright and blinding’. The glowing, flaming
light beneath Mr. Talala’s window was also noticed by
Kalle and Anna Saapunki who live 300 metres away.
At first they believed their neighbour’s house was on
fire. Mrs. Mirja Saapunki, who lives | km. away from
Mr. Talala’s house, was awakened by the brightness of
the light.

*According to all the eye-witnesses, the phenomenon
was seen for one minute before it rose into the sky.
Later, Mauno Talala melted part of the 3-4 cm. thick
ice, left behind by the phenomenon on the “landing site™,
and obtained some dark green water in a drinking glass.

“There have been several UFO sightings during the
early winter in this area of North-Eastern Finland.
Most of the sightings have been in the Isosyote area of
Pudasjérvi.

“Dr. Birger Wiik from the Geological Research
Institute in Otamiemi, Helsinki, was inclined to be a



little sceptical about the case. He believes that the
observers have combined two separate things. In his
opinion, the light phenomenon could have been caused
by a meteorite, hundreds falling as they do on Finland
alone each year. He thought the explanation for the
green ice could be that water normally turns light green
as it freezes. Furthermore, farm chemicals might have
become mixed in it. The matter is still under
investigation.”

The account in the Helsingen Sanomat for January 9,
1971, carried the headline:

THE KUUSAMO UFO-SIGHTING
“EXCEPTIONALLY INTERESTING™
It ran . . .

* *Exceptionally interesting,” say UFO investigators
about the sighting made last Sunday in Kuusamo,
Saapunki, when something tangible was left behind,
perhaps making it possible to ascertain what the object
was carrying.

“Particles contained in the ice have been sent for
investigation to the Chemical Department of Oulu
University, to the Geological Research Institute, and
other places. The results of the analysis are expected in
two weeks.

“The phenomenon is no less interesting knowing as
we do that an object of exactly the same appearance
was sighted in Eastern Karelia in the USSR last year.
The particles left behind by that object were not
investigated in time. Similar phenomena have also been
observed in the Andes in South America, but mostly
these are not published because the Defence Authorities
generally keep them secret.

“The Saapunki UFO is believed to have been in the
area earlier, as on the night before there had been
inexplicable power cuts in the village. The light pheno-
menon on Sunday morning was spotted by about ten
people. The object was seen arriving from ESE over
the lake *at tree-top level’. Those who had noticed the
light from afar said it looked rather like an electric
hand torch. The movement was rather slow, so there
was no difficulty in observing it.

“After having descended near the footpath leading to
Mauno Talala’s house, at a point 15 metres from the
wall of the house, the light became so intense that it
illumined the inside of a room, through curtains, in a
house as much as 2 km. away. Seen from a distance
the light seemed somewhat like a welding arc. People
in Talala’s house could only say the light was ‘very
bright’, but those further away said it was pulsating.
Each witness stated that the phenomenon remained
stationary about one minute and then disappeared.
Nobody knows exactly in which direction it disappeared
except that it went upwards.

Triangular mark in the snow

"On Wednesday, the frozen area of the landing site
was investigated and found to be triangular in form.
The long sides measured 370 cm. and the base measured
230 cm. The apex was ‘cut off’, making a fourth side of
approximate length 50 cm. The snow on the spot was
about 40 cm. deep. On the surface of the snow was a
layer of coloured, fragile ice, about 3 cm. thick and in

the form of vertical needles. Under that layer was clear,
hard ice about 1:5 cm. thick.

“The investigators have calculated that whilst
stationary, for one minute, the object melted enough
snow to form about 300 litres of water, which then froze
again to ice. According to this calculation, the heat
radiation was not excessively strong, and in any case
it was considerably weaker than the amount of light
radiation indicated.

“The dark green material, which was later found to
have turned a dark blue-grey colour, was more con-
centrated in the centre of the melted spot than at the
edges. It was thought to be composed of some kind of
exhaust. The drop-like, or needle, form of the ice,
strengthens this theory according to engineer Ahti J.
Karivieri from the Oulu UFO Society, who visited the
site with an investigation team.

“*Samples of the blue-grey ice have been taken to the
Oulu University and to the Typpi Oy (Nitrogen Co.)
laboratory. In addition, private investigators have taken
samples, even to Sweden. However, these results will not
be available for about another two weeks. This long
waiting period is mainly due to there being no clue as
to the nature of the material in the sample.

“The radiation measurements performed on Wednes-
day in the landing area showed no change from the
normal. The melted ice is said to smell bad and stale.
Some think it smells something like oil; others say it
smells more of candy.

Unknown soot observed

“Engineer Karivieri states that he has never before
seen soot of this kind: ‘It does not originate from any
form of fuel nor from a welding torch. When some
metals burn, oxides are formed with similar small
particles, and the colour could well be blue-grey or
green, as in this case.’

“The UFO investigators know of cases where colour
traces have been found, but which disappeared within a
couple of weeks. Therefore samples have to be investi-
gated quickly.

“Karivieri said that this north-eastern part of Finland
is by far the most active UFO-sighting area in the
country. Giving his personal explanation for this
activity, he said that it is an area of many hills and
valleys, and it is sparsely populated. Furthermore, the
earth’s crust has undergone considerable change in this
region, and it is not impossible that there are still
tensions in the surface. In this respect, the area is much
like the Andes. In addition there is the Russian atomic
test centre of Novaya Zemlya, only 800 km. away,
where there is said to have been at least two tests in the
last three weeks.

“In Pudasjirvi, the most active UFO area, a UFO
investigation association was founded on Wednesday.”

Since these accounts were published, a friend of mine,
a biologist who is a member of the Interplanetarians,
has obtained samples of the ice from the landing spot.
Some samples are melted, and others are in their
original condition. The frozen specimens are kept
unopened in plastic containers at —20°C at the Bio-
logical Research Institute while discussions are in
progress as to the best way to proceed with the analyses.

(continued on page 27)



POSSIBLE UFO-INDUCED
TEMPORARY PARALYSIS

Berthold Eric Schwarz, M.D.

Dr. Schwarz is Consultant to Brain Wave Laboratory, Essex County Medical Center,

Cedar Grove, New Jersey.

STATE of temporary paralysis, presumably caused

by UFOs, has often been reported.', %, * This
report explores various aspects of this baffling condition,
as well as other purported UFO-associated physiological
and psychic effects.

1
The Setting

On a field trip to study a family that had reported
many terrorising UFO sightings, bizarre poltergeist
manifestations, etc., the author travelled to a small
Catskill Mountain community (in west-central New
York State). When he stopped in a gift store to purchase
some postal cards and make enquiries about the locale,
a neatly groomed, pleasant, middle-aged woman
customer told him about the strange UFO experience
of temporary paralysis that happened to her lifelong
friend, Mr. O.*

11
The Experience

It was late in August, 1968, between 8.00 and 9.00 p.m.,
on a pitch-black night. Mr. M. O., age 58, a self-
employed garage mechanic, a bachelor, and an elemen-
tary-school graduate, was alone on his farm in an
isolated area of the Catskill Mountains of New York.
As was his custom, he went outside with his French
poodle to feed his horse some bread and honey. The
dog was about five feet in front of him, and he had
milk in his hand for the cat, who was then in the garage.

Suddenly, ‘I heard a shrill sound—a whining, like
a dynamo. I could not move. I looked at the dog and
he was standing motionless. The horse (Morgan
gelding) was at the fence, standing still with his head in
the air, turned toward the side of the hill. T lost all
sense of time—it might have lasted seconds or five to ten
minutes. | realised | wasn’t moving, but I felt my body
from the head down to my hips. It was pins and needles,
like when you get a cold. I shook. I could not move—
only my head. I could only watch, turning my head a
bit. but I couldn’t take a step. All of a sudden the noise

* The names and addresses of the witness, and of the other
people interviewed, are on file with Flving Saucer Review—
EDITOR,

Sketch map of New York; location of the Catskill mountains

stopped, and I could move. When I looked around, the
horse and the dog were also moving. | looked up the
valley and saw nothing, but over the barn there were
two holes in the sky, as white as snow. It was like
looking into a barrel. They were perfectly round—
automobile-tyre size and about three feet apart. They
stayed still and didn’t move for ten to fifteen minutes—
then disappeared. The next morning I discovered that
the cat didn’t drink the milk I had put out for him the
night before, and this was unusual. There was no effect
on the household electric lights, clock (battery-powered),
or radio, but there was something odd—the telephone
didn’t work when I went to make a call that night. It
was all right the next day.”

Shortly after arising in the morning, Mr. O. noted
dysuria: “Burning urine, like a red-hot poker. Ten
minutes later it was all right.” Several hours after this
symptom, he developed red streaks on the glans penis
(uncircumcised). This disappeared in one day. There
was no ostensible reason for these complaints, such as



cystitis, prostatitis, or various venereal diseases. There
was no change in his sexual function before or following
this experience.

Mr. O.'s general health was good, and he prided
himself on his near-perfect work record of forty years.
However, six months prior to this episode, he had had
pain in the right sacrosciatic notch radiating along the
sciatic nerve to his heel. Chiropractic manipulations
were ineffective. However, the day after his nocturnal
experience he was completely relieved of pain and he
has been well until the present time (December, 1970).

Two weeks after his experience, Mr. O. suddenly
“remembered the spot I had noticed in the field [one
week before the episode] where the hay was flat in a
round area about six feet in diameter. I noticed this
when | was mowing. At the time I didn't associate this
to anything, but later [after the episode] when I got
out to the spot, 1 found that the grass was only four
to five inches tall. I was amazed to see that the area
was as dry as the floor and with all fine little stones—
not cobbles as there are surrounding the area—unusual
for this place.”

Six telephone interviews with the subject and psychia-
tric and neurological examinations at Mr. O.’s place
of business on March 3, 1970, and December 2, 1970,
confirmed his general good health. There was no
discernible reason, psychopathologically or neuro-
logically, for his strange experience. There was no
impairment of orientation, nor of various intellectual
and memory functions. There was no objective evidence
for a ruptured intervertebral disc. There was nothing
to suggest untruthfulness or fabrication as an explana-
tion, There was a past history for a healed duodenal
ulcer{ that had prevented military service. In previous
years he had had migraine: “I'm a great one to keep
stuff inside of me.” The overall picture of good health
was supported by Mr. O.'s answers on the Cornell
Medical Index Questionnaire and computerised Minne-
sota Multiphasic Personality Inventory.

Shortly after the episode, Mr. O. told several neigh-
bours and friends about his experience. On the tele-
phone, the physician interviewed a distinguished actor
and his wife; a lady acquaintance since Mr. O.’s
boyhood (the author’s original informant): a veteri-
narian and her secretary; and a close lady friend who is
a medical technologist; plus several other people. They
remembered hearing about the experience and had
confidence in Mr. O.’s veracity.

The actor recalled Mr. O’s peculiar genito-urinary
history and sciatic pain. The actor’s home, also on the
same Catskill mountain ridge, was approximately
150 yards away from Mr. O.’s. The actor, too, saw the
round, flattened area, and noted that the affected grass
was very green and stunted. Once last year (one year
after the episode) the actor telephoned Mr. O. to see
if his outside spotlights were turned off (they were)
because there was ““a greenish, glowing light around
your place.” No further significance was attached to
this event other than its uniqueness. It had not been
noted in the past. Until the interview it was not related

1 It might be noted that during the playback sessions of
hypnotic interviews, Barney Hill's duodenal ulcers flared
up. (Fuller, J. G.: The Interrupted Journey, Dell Books,
New York, 1967, pp. 312, 325.)

to the previous happenings. However, since then it has
been observed on a few occasions and attributed to the
stars by Mr. O. (7). The actor has had a distinguished
career and is known and vouchsafed for by the author's
friend, Joseph Dunninger.

Interview of the medical technologist on September 9,
1970, also confirmed all the history, including Mr. O.’s
physical data. The technologist’s mother was a highly
regarded private duty nurse at Mountainside Hospital,
Montclair, New Jersey, where the author was on the
staff for ten years.

When the veterinarian and her assistant were con-
tacted, they corroborated Mr. O.’s narrative, and also
recalled the odd effects on the animals. They knew of
no similar effects on other animals in their professional
experience.*

From the study of Mr. O., as well as the opinions of
these five people, it was evident that Mr. O. had no
previous experience or consuming interest in UFOs,
science fiction, psychics, and the like. He was described
as a hard-working, warm-hearted, extroverted auto
mechanic and outdoorsman, without literary inclina-
tions.

Although Mr. O.’s past experiences included some
psychic phenomena, there was no more than is apparent

* Gordon Creighton has recently catalogued *“The Effects of
UFOs on Animals, Birds, and Smaller Creatures” (FSR,
Vol. 16, Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4, 1970). In another study
(Delphieux, M., translated by Gordon Creighton: “*Near-
landing in Hérault”, FSR, Vol. 16, No. 1, January/
February, 1970, pp. 13-14) it was noted that a herd of
goats following exposure to a UFO came in heat at closer
intervals and that an excellent male goat for breeding
purposes . . . was no longer doing his job. O., who was
raised on a farm, did not observe any sexual changes in
his animals. Close UFO sightings involving dogs, investi-
gated by the author, are:

(a) In a widely publicised case of Wednesday, November
13, 1957, Mrs. John Trasco of rural New Jersey, a
nurse’s aide, said: “One creature (little, small green
man) came out and wanted the dog—had a glowing
from each finger tip. They [UFO and two occupants]
landed by the outhouse, which we don’t use. The dog
(a six-year-old partially blind, charcoal-coloured
Belgian shepherd) howled, and was very frightened.
(Delaware Valley News, November 15, 1957.)

(b) A close, tree-height sighting happened over an outdoor
pool at White Rock Lake, New Jersey, on March 31,
1966, at 8.05 p.m. ([Dover] Daily Advance, Friday,
April 1, 1966, p. 1), and Mrs. Connie Bateman’s dog
“howled and my sister’s dog whined and tried to get
into the house through a window.”

(c) On April 1, 1966, at 8.45 p.m. (UPI, April 4, 1966), Mrs.
Carol Vander Plate, while in her home on a mountain-
top at WLVP-FM, Hardyston Township (which is
close to White Rock Lake), New Jersey, noted a UFO
at tree height, and *. . . All of a sudden my two French
poodles started barking and carrying on. They refused
to obey. They went crazy, running in circles, and jump-
ing over the furniture.” (““UFOs in New Jersey”, The
Journal of the Medical Society of New Jersey, Vol. 66,
No. 8, pp. 460-464, August, 1969.)

(d) A close sighting lasted for one hour, beginning at
10.10 p.m. on a Wednesday in April, 1967, at Hacketts-
town, New Jersey, directly over the houses at tree-
height and over the fish hatchery, where Mrs. Lawrence
Robinson’s springer spaniel puppy ‘‘sat still on the
ground, howling, and wouldn’t move,”



in many case histories. There were no associated psychic
events or harassments with, or after, his experience. Mr.
0. has had no previous dissociative states, time lapses,
blackouts, seizures, hypnotic trances, head injuries,
encephalopathies of any cause, injudicious use of
alcohol, or drugs. He had taken no alcohol at the time
of his episode. He could recall no dreams.

Careful scrutiny of the family history and of other
significant people in Mr. O.’s background yielded no
material for remotely similar UFO-related experiences.

11
Possible Mechanisms

(a) Paresthesias

Descriptively, it would seem that Mr. O., his horse,
and his dog had catalepsy that correlated with the
duration of a strange dynamo sound. Such UFO-
related sounds are not uncommon, and the author has
reports of similar sounds from investigations of the
Split Rock and Wanaque Reservoir areas of northern
New Jersey. Mr. O.’s paresthesia, or tmglmg pins-and-
needles sensation, is a common symptom seen in medical
practice, and is usually associated with an anxiety state.
The anxiety causes unconscious overbreathing, which
in turn, leads to alkalosis and latent tetany, or the
physiological effects on the peripheral nerves: typically,
paresthesias of the fingers, toes, and so forth. In many
instances, the patient is aware of the cause-and-effect
relationships—the overbreathing induced by anxiety,
causing tingling.*

Mr. O.’s paresthesia could have been a physiological
reaction to his overwhelming anxiety.

(b) Catalepsy

As noted, UFO-associated temporary paralysis
(catalepsy) and other neuromuscular effects are not
uncommon. The rigid, immobile posture is a way of
reacting to overwhelming emotional stimuli: fear,
bereavement, catastrophe. It results when more active
measures: i.e., fight, flight, would be too difficult. In
some cases the catalepsy is associated with an alleged
“ray” from the UFO. In one well-documented case of
close exposure to a UFO, the subject, who did not have
catalepsy, developed profound reversible muscular
weakness and wasting and was hospitalised. *

(¢) Question of Amnesia

Although Mr. O., apparently did not have amnesia
from his experience, the uncertainty of the time-lapse
suggests the need for further investigation by hypnosis,
psychotherapy, and electroencephalography.® In acute
brain syndromes, toxic confusion-states of various
causes, and states of heightened anxiety, etc., the loss
of the sense of time is often the first symptom.

(d) Psychical Seizures

Psychical seizures® (temporary lobe epilepsy) have
some symptoms similar to Mr. O.'s experience: (1)
disorientation, (2) behavioural response, (3) sometimes
relatively prolonged episodes (unusual for psychical

. Unforlunalely lhe demonstratlon of this relauonshlp is
seldom therapeutic, because of the deeper problems having
to do with the patient’s unconscious life,

seizures) and (4) rapid onset and termination. However,
the nature of Mr. O.’s **attack™ and the fact that he had
only one such experience in his life, plus the involvement
of the animals, and so on, makes a solitary psychical
seizure very unlikely.

(e) Sleep Paralysis

“Sleep paralysis™7 (cataplexy), which has been
known in folklore throughout history as being caused
by a nightly visitation of devils and demons, is charac-
terised by a state where the subject feels awake and is
aware of his surroundings but is incapable of voluntary
movement. The attack usually lasts from several
seconds to several minutes and is accompanied by
terror, with or without hallucinations (see case report
that follows). Cataplexy, however, would not explain
the simultaneous animal effects in Mr. O.’s experience.
Patients with sleep paralysis usually have many attacks,
and unlike Mr. O., a definite psychopathalogical
history.

(f) Genitourinary Effects

The dysuria and penile lesions would seem to be a
complication of Mr. O.’s experience. Although there is
only Mr. O.’s report of them, and no record from a
trained observer, the “‘red streaks’ were most unusual.®
By description they were not psychosomatic or factitial
(self-induced). This opinion was supported by George R.
Read, M.D., urologist, who felt that the specific
reported events, dysuria and lesions, were unlike those
seen in practice.

Dr. Benjamin Simon® noted how in his treatment of
the Hills, Barney had an inflammation of the small circle
of warts that had developed in an almost geometrically
perfect circle around his groin. Barney wondered if
the warts were psychosomatic or if they were caused
by the examination and instruments aboard the UFO
(ibid., pp. 283-284). Barney also recalled the cool
sensation in his groin while being examined aboard the
UFO, and Betty (his wife) had a bizarre *‘pregnancy
test” in which a long needle was injected into her navel.
Keel ' described a spectacular contactee case involving
a prominent Brazilian lawyer who allegedly went on a
UFO trip during which he noted that he felt pain and
cold in his genitals.

These examples, with the sexual motif, in addition
to the extraordinary Villas Boas' case, and others,t
raise the question of reality vs. delusions, hallucinations,
and illusions. It is well known that in some emotional
disorders there are often numerous sexual symptoms.
The symptoms usually are the result of the (inter-
personal) anxiety rather than the cause of it. Mr. O.’s
rash and dysuria were not typical for an emotional or
psychosomatic reaction. Moreover, there was a lack of

1 In a New Jcrsey presumed-UFO- landmg case of July 3,
1970, near Sandy Hook, with many extraordinary features
one of the witnesses, a young mother, following a noctur-
nal “*smell of death” episode, had a terrifying dream of
faceless forms trying to break into her house. She awoke
with severe right sacrosciatic notch pain. At the time, the
woman wondered if she had a needle puncture in the
gluteal region. She told several members of her family
and consulted her physician, who confirmed this history
to the author,



any previous concatenation of events or a crisis leading
up to his once-in-a-lifetime experience. There was
neither a build up of tension nor a previous sexual
problem. The UFO-effect hypothesis remains.

Mention should be made of the dramatic relief of
Mr. O.’s sacrosciatic notch and sciatic nerve pain,
following the nocturnal experience. From his past
history, and upon direct examination, Mr. O. seemed to
have a high pain threshold and he was not hyper-
suggestible. Since his occupation called for rugged
physical health and strong back, his backache was a
serious threat to his livelihood. There was nothing to
suggest any “‘purpose’ (e.g., secondary gain, disability
benefits, etc.) for such a backache. Manipulation of his
back for months had been ineffective. Conversion was
a most unlikely explanation because of the anatomical
distribution of the pain, and because of the absence
of previous similar episodes. Perhaps Mr. O’s unusual
therapeutic result is similar to a case reported by Finch, !
in which a toothache was relieved following a UFO
experience.

Keel described a widely publicised incident in which
a Texas deputy sheriff’s left index finger, painful,
swollen, and bleeding from an alligator bite, was almost
immediately relieved and healed following close
exposure to a ‘‘great rectangular glob of purple light,
about fifty feet in height™ (ibid., p. 254).1

Possible Radiation

Although specific supporting data are lacking, it can
be speculated that high-frequency electromagnetic
(radar) waves, microwaves, or infrasound could have
conceivably been causative factors. All of these moda-
lities can produce a variety of physical effects. When
told about Mr. O.'s case, Karl Olsson, an electrical
engineer, conjectured that Mr. O.’s reaction was due
to high-frequency radar combined with infrared (for
directing the energy) from a twin-engine turboprop
airplane. A particular U.S. experimental military
reconnaissance aircraft can fly as slow as an estimated
50 m.p.h., and because of the turbines, makes a whining
sound. The twin white lights over the barn could have
been due to cabin lights from the plane reflected off the
revolving propellers.

This explanation, although superficially attractive, is
incomplete. For example, why would such an experi-
mental aircraft, fifty miles from the nearest military
base, be in this isolated area of the Catskills at that
particular time, and be visibly stationary for ten to
fifteen minutes? And if the purported effects were
random, why were they not more widespread, or why
was there not other physical evidence? Furthermore,
how could such an explanation be reconciled with (1)
the appearance of the circular, flattened-out area in the
field, at the approximate time of Mr. O.’s experience and
(2) the strange, green, luminescent effect around Mr.
0.’s house one year after the event?

i Gordon Creighton has recently summarised this and
several other UFO healing cases (FSR, Vol. 15, No. 5,
September/October, 1969, pp. 20-23) and Aimé Michel
has documented an extraordinary case involving a French
doctor and his infant son (FSR, Special Issue, No. 3,
September, 1969, pp. 3-16). It is hoped that many more
examples can be collected,

Consultation with Keith Keeler, M.D., psychiatrist,
and Hector Giancarlo, M.D., otologist, yielded no con-
clusive explanations for either the microwave or infra-
sound hypotheses. There were the same objections as
with the hypothetical radar effect: how such an effect,
as in Mr. O.'s case, could have been so selectively, and
reversibly produced: e.g. without permanent thermal or
hemorrhagic tissue damage, with resultant tinnitus and
deafness, etc. Thus, if there was radiation, what was it?
What was its source? Some experimental military craft,
other sophisticated weaponry, or UFO ? And then, how
did the supposed radiation mediate the particular
non-injurious biological effects?

Psychic Red Herrings?

Another possible way that these effects could have
been induced in Mr. O. and his animals may have been
telepathic. Forexample, the following highly compressed
vignettes, specific for Mr. O., illustrate this complex
relationship.

I. A young woman patient, who was seen in psycho-
therapy for depression, came one day for her session,
terrified. She stated that on Sunday, at 9.30 a.m., while
at home in bed: “I suddenly tried, desperately, to get up
but 7 couldn’t move. It was very weird. | became panicky.
I thought I was going to scream. You (physician)
appeared like a vision. It came on through gauze—
instead of projecting onto a screen, it came in backwards,
like a camera behind the screen. It had a floating effect.
It was a moving, floating face—ethereal. Only, it had
just your head: nothing was said. It appeared out of
nowhere, like those crazy horror stories or in séances
where a head appears out of nowhere. Boom! That’s the
only way I can describe it.”

At the time of this woman’s experience, and unknown
to her, the physician in his home, miles away from the
patient, was visiting with Mr. Clement Tamburreno,
psychic healer. He was discussing two specific points of
urgent interest at that time (1) the UFO temporary
paralysis of Mr. O., and his animals, and (2) materiali-
sation of UFOQOs, apparitions, etc. It was wondered if
Mr. Tamburreno, who lectures widely to interested
groups, would know of someone who might have had
similar experiences. The woman patient, who was en
rapport with her therapist, had specific reasons to be
upset at that time; for his part, the physician was keyed
up about traumatic events in his own life, and sought
some clues from his researches that might have a practical
medical application. The conscious and unconscious
needs of patient and physician telepathically served each
other.t

As the patient related her presumed telepathic
hallucinatory experience, the physician made a note on
his pad of other similar examples. He jotted down the
name of another patient, who had telepathically
hallucinated a coffin.'? Hardly had he finished than
this patient telephoned long distance for an appoint-
ment. She had not been seen in many months. It was
learned that she had no pressing problems at this time.
It was speculated that she telepathically reacted to the
possible use of her highly charged life example (of

T In the course of her psychotherapy there were numerous
other presumed telepathic episodes,



which she was unaware): e.g., unconscious competition

with the other lady patient.*

Telepathy is not directly linked to Mr. O.’s temporary
paralysis. However, telepathic claims are not at all
infrequent in some UFO cases, and they could be
capable of mediating all kinds of effects (telesomatic
reactions'?). It is difficult, if not impossible, as in Mr.
O.’s case, to collect all the relevant data:; but these
examples show that what can and does happen in
psychotherapy can also (and does?) happen in UFO
cases. Since UFO experiences are often associated with
terror and take place in awesome and emotionally
splitting situations—the same substrates that seem to be
prerequisites for many telepathic experiences—some or
much of their (UFO) content could come from the
unconscious minds of others (telepathic suggestion).
Ehrenwald '+ has shown how such unconscious bias or
telepathic leakage might be a factor of considerable
significance in psychotherapy. By analogy, this could
also be highly important to UFO investigations. To try
to be objective without taking into account the subjec-
tive (i.e., one’s unconscious bias) can fool the investi-
gator of the best intentions. The following example of a
possible telepathic linkage involving Mr. O. further
illustrates this.

2. On Thursday, June 18, 1970, the physician was upset by
serious illnesses in his family, and, perhaps as an escape
from such grimness, he phantasied about the unusual O.
case, and its interesting medical implications. He
yearned to return to the Catskill Mountains to obtain
more data, While he was thus musing, the friend who had
originally invited him to the Catskills (where O. and the
other case described in the beginning of this paper were
located) telephoned, and again extended an invitation.
This friend knew nothing of the physician’s own
pressing events and the invitation had to be declined.
The frustration was aggravated by the physician’s
accidentally coming across for the first time, a large
newspaper advertisement of the hit play in which Mr. O.’s
neighbour was the leading actor. Hardly had these
emotionally charged thoughts of desiring to see Mr. O.
crystallised, than O. himself telephoned for the first and
only time in our association. Thus, it can be supposed
that telepathic linkages can account in this way for
many of the strange “*coincidences™ or serendipity that
one seems to find in ufology.

It may be asked: (1) can the awesome tracer-laden
UFO events—as in Mr. O.’s case—account for the
awareness of telepathy (and other psychic phenometna
or actually generate its happenings; or (2) could the
hypothesised intelligent force behind the UFQOs directly
cause the telepathic and other psychic events, as is
claimed in many instances; or (3) is it a phantasmogoria :
a combination of both: i.e., an original telepathic
stimulus setting up a chain reaction of psychic and other
events that are coloured by psychopathological,
experiential, cultural factors, and so forth?

* The element of cut-off in some of these possible telepathic
examples can extend to absurd lengths. For example, when
the author was preparing the final draft of this report and
wondering if the patient would make her next session,
since she had travelled three hundred miles away for the
week-end, a lady friend of her’s 'phoned to say that the
woman had just called her and asked that she confirm the
appointment,

Autographed photograph of Joseph Dunninger and Vladimir
Komorov, cosmonaut, who died April 24, 1967, when descend-
ing to earth and his space capsule parachute failed to open

Dunninger

Since it is often the “forgotten™ (Mr. O.'s confusion
of time during the episode) that is accessible to the
telepathist, possibly the gifted paragnost can make
worthwhile contributions to ufology in this area. In
the attempt to decipher this mystery, Joseph Dunninger,
America’s greatest telepathist, whose formal career has
extended world-wide for over fifty years, graciously
volunteered his skills. Dunninger is also a much-
honoured magician, inventor of illusions,? revealer of
fraudulent séances, participant and witness to numerous
unexplainable, extraordinary, presumed psychic events
in and out of séances. After meeting Mr. O., on Decem-
ber 2, 1970, Dunninger felt that he was an honest man,
and that his experiences involved no trick or illusion.
Dunninger, whose highly developed and documented
telepathic talents were occasionally used for the solu-
tion of crimes and the treatment of patients in medical
school settings, received no telepathic impressions from
Mr. O., but felt that from his experience Mr. O.’s case
was unique and worthy of intensive scientific study.

In summary, temporary paralysis, among other

+

Dunninger, who invented many of his friend Houdini's
best illusions, had also developed, during World War 11, a
means of making a battleship invisible. He showed the
author his correspondence with the U.S. Navy Department,.



causes, can also be a UFO-associated condition with
many ramifications which can be studied from a
variety of viewpoints.
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THE LANDING AT QUIPAPA

Dr. Walter Buhler

TH]S interesting case occurred between 10.15 and
10.35 p.m. on February 25, 1966, at Quipapa,' a
place near Garanhuns in the interior of the sugar-
growing state of Pernambuco in north-eastern Brazil,
and was the subject of a careful investigation conducted
on the spot by Senhor Rubens do Couto Soares of
Garanhuns on behalf of sBepv, the Brazilian Society
for the Study of Flying Saucers. Our report, based on
the investigation, appeared in sBepv Bulletin No. 54
(January/February 1967), and in this connection it is
worth noting that the scene of this event is only 13 km.
distant from Canhotinho, where an encounter with small
UFO entities occurred on October 26, 1965.*

There was also at Sdao Jodo, in the same area, on
September 10, 1965, the case of Antonio Pau Ferro who
saw the two small UFOs swoop down and land two
little men quite close to him while he was working on
his plantation of corn, beans, and tomatoes,t so we
can say that this State of Pernambuco has had more
than an average share of landings by little men.

In the Quipapa case there were three witnesses, all
young women, namely Ofelia Versoa, aged 21, and two
sisters, aged 20 and 17 respectively, bearing the curiously
similar names of Maria Marlice da Silva and Maria
Marlucy da Silva. The two last-named live close by.
The Aguas Brancas Sugar Factory, employing 600
people, is near there, and Maria Marlice works at the
plant, partly as an assistant to the doctor in the first-aid
post and partly in the accounts department. The younger
sister, Maria Marlucy, stays at home and helps her

* Case No. 65 in Gordon Creighton’s “The Humanoids
in Latin America” in The Humanoids.
t Case No. 59, “The Humanoids in Latin America.”
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Fig. 1. Drawing based on sketch by Marlice showing disc with
two “‘headlamps”’

mother with the housework, while the third witness,
Ofelia Versoa, is from the nearby town of Igarapéba,
and merely happened to be staying with her friends the
da Silva girls during the days of Carnival.

The sighting

On the night in question, the three girls had been
together on a visit to friends. At 10.10 p.m., they set off
home, walking, as they habitually did, along a well-lit
road which runs beside the narrow-gauge railway of the
sugar factory, the home of the da Silva girls being located
right beside this track. The level of the road is half a
metre higher than the railway track.

Suddenly, about 100 metres ahead of them, they
perceived some lights right in the middle of the road
and concluded that it must be somebody engaged in
repairing a broken-down vehicle, perhaps a jeep.

However, as they came up to a distance of less than
50 metres from the lights, they were alarmed by the sight
of what they later described as a kind of large dish or
cup, reversed, with two large headlamps (see sketch by
Marlice reproduced in Fig. 1). These two headlamps,
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Fig. 2. Drawing based on sketch by Marlice of luminous
headgear worn by the tall entity

the girls thought, were dimmed like car headlights for
the purpose of serving as parking lights.

* (19 -39
=il Humanoid ‘‘occupants

Beside this object they saw three small individuals
of the size of nine-year-old children and wearing
peculiar large “headgear.” From their gesticulations and
head movements these three small beings appeared to
the_girls to be engaged in conversation, though the girls
did not actually hear any sounds from them.

Nevertheless it was not however the three small
“boys” that upset the girls so much as what appeared
to be the figure of a big man, over 2 metres high, who
was standing erect and motionless, the upper part of
his body being luminous (see sketch by Marlice repro-
duced in Fig. 2). As the sketch shows, this tall being was
wearing on his head a large shining ““‘thing™ which from
time to time would glow more brightly and would then
dim, its colours changing from green via blue to red, and
back again to green and so on. Said Marlace: I did
not see any face behind the light, but I think he looked at
me, since he was faced in my direction, and did not
move. The three small ones did not show that they had
seen me, and continued with their conversation.™

This factor of the larger being in association with
several smaller ones, makes this case particularly
interesting, and recalls a number of other episodes,
particularly that at Le Vézenay in France where, as
reported by J. Tyrode in Lumiéres Dans La Nuit No. 97
(December 1968), and recently in FSR Case Histories
No. 1 (October 1970), the witness says small beings in
the company of what appeared to be a normal-sized man.

By now the three girls had decided that these people
ahead of them must be robbers. Panicking, Ofelia and
Marlucy ran back and hid in a ravine near some houses
situated about 100 metres distant. In the account which
she prepared for us, Marliice admitted that she was
frightened enough too, but she said that her curiosity
overcame her fear. She therefore stood her ground,
and indeed even approached a few metres closer, and
remained there for about four minutes. Then she tried
to get the other two girls to rejoin her and make a dash
past the UFO, as she was anxious to get home as
speedily as possible. But to no avail, for the other two
were still afraid to come forward again.

UFO takes up new position

At this moment, she noticed a jeep coming down the
road from the opposite direction. So she ran back to
the other two girls and was now able to persuade them
to come with her past the frightening sight while the jeep
was on the scene. It was ascertained subsequently that
the driver of the jeep confirmed having seen the three
girls, although he had not seen the UFO.

They rushed past the object and the beings, but were
astonished shortly afterwards to find the UFO had
landed again in front of them, on the right-hand side
of the road and railway track as before, but this time
nearer to the road and the track. The UFO was (perhaps
in order to obtain some concealment from the jeep's
headlights) in a slight depression in the ground, where
there was a little stream. The road and track crossed the
stream at this point by a small bridge.

Marlice’s account went on to say that, as the jeep
passed them, its lights were well reflected by the UFO,
which they therefore saw very clearly. Their fear was
now greater than ever, for they would now have to pass
by the thing more closely than ever. Trying to get the
other two girls to pluck up courage for another dash,
Marliace approached it closely several times; indeed
she says that at one moment she was only thirty centi-
metres® from it. At this time, however, none of the
beings were to be seen.

Mother also sees object

Finally, after much hesitation, the girls made their
run for it, and got past. Arriving home, the da Silva
girls told their mother that they had seen “‘a thing from
out of this world™ on the road. Taking the mother with
them, they all went back to look at the UFO again. Not
far from their house there was a low wooden farm gate
that it was necessary to pass through, and as they were
arriving at this gate they saw the object coming flying
towards them at a height of only about six metres or so
from the ground. This produced panic again, and in the
confusion the mother failed to get a good view of it, for
all four of them were now in headlong flight, Marlucy
screaming that the thing was going to catch them.

Arriving at the house, Marliice bravely stood her
ground outside to see what it was going to do, while the
other three quickly got inside and shut the door. The
UFO, its luminosity alternately waxing and waning, was
now flying around in circles above the house. After a few
seconds of this, it began to climb higher and higher and
vanished from sight.

Marluce states that she wept a great deal that night,
and was unable to sleep. She had a persistent slight
headache and her mother gave her a pill for it, but the
pill was of no use. Next day however she felt all right
physically, although her nerves were still jumpy.

Descriptions of “*clothing’’ and object

Her account of the clothing of the three small beings
is interesting, and quite reminiscent, at least in part, of
the description of the clothing in the case of the small
men seen by José Camilo Filho at nearby Alto dos

(Continued on page 21)



PROGRESS AT CRADLE HILL

Charles Bowen

HEN Mr. John Ben first showed us the photo-

graphs taken from Cradle Hill by Mr. Foxwell on
March 28, 1970, we were delighted to learn that they
had been obtained, as far as we could ascertain, without
the knowledge or collaboration of the enthusiastic
Warminster ufologists. We were also favourably
impressed by Mr. Ben’s quiet objectivity, and it came
as no surprise when, whilst agreeing that the pictures
should be published in Flying Saucer Review, he stressed
that there was still much research to be done, and many
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questions about the photographs to be answered,

As readers are aware, the Cradle Hill photographs
were exposed to the public gaze in our July/August issue
of 1970, In a production sense, we had passed the point
of “no return™ with that issue when Mr. Ben told us
that he and Mr. Collins had concluded that the glowing

objects in the photographs were below the crest of

Battlesbury Hill. I pointed out that others might come
to the same conclusion, and that it was desirable, there-
fore, that further investigation be made at the earliest
opportunity.

Photograph 2 from FSR July/
August 1970: the object has
moved to the right and its lumi-
nosity appears to have dimi-
nished. (Dr. Guerin showed,
after cleaning the negative, that
this was the same geometrical
shape.) Note the new position
of the car lights

At this point it is necessary to remind readers that
investigations of reports of UFOs which are recorded
in our two journals are carried out on a spare-time,
amateur basis, and invariably the expenses are borne
by the investigators themselves. The best the Editor
may hope is that dedicated people like Mr. Ben and his
friends can, once in a while, find the funds and the time
to make a week-end trip to the scene on an incident
whether from Kent, or London, or Essex, or places
beyond.

Photograph 1 as published in

FSR for July/August 1970:

the object, high to the left.

Note, to the right, the lights of

car moving on the hill bevond
the street lights

——

By the end of 1970, John Ben assured me that it would
probably require only one more trip to find relevant
details about a private track along the side of Battlesbury
Hill, and the persons who would be able to use it.

By mid-January, 1971, news had reached me that
there had been a little lightweight criticism of the Cradle
Hill photographs. However, something of a more
serious nature followed, just beating the onset of the
postal strike: it was a letter from a friend of FSR of long
standing, Mr. S. E. Scammell. After reading the letter
(it isreproduced in these pages) I telephoned Mr. Ben and




Photo 1 Photo 2

Photo 3 Photo 4

Contact print, slightly reduced, from the negative strip showing the order of the four exposures

asked him if, during his visit to Warminster (arranged
for the week-end of January 23-24) he would take day-
light photographs from Cradle Hill across the valley to
Battlesbury Hill, both from the position where Mr.
Foxwell had mounted his camera, and from points of the
track up to the Field Barn. He agreed that this would be
done, weather permitting. 1 explained that there had
been ““some criticism of his daylight photograph® which
had been published in the July/August issue of FSR.
In view of Mr. Scammell’s letter, it is considered
necessary to reproduce once again our original photo-
graph No. 1 of March 28, 1970, together with a print
of the negative strip (which was studied and cleaned by
Dr. P. Guérin) in which the photograph is situated. In
this same strip there is a third picture, which was notf
reproduced either in our issue for July/August 1970, or
subsequently. This interesting photograph is now
reproduced (photo 4): no glowing object is visible, but

Photograph 4 ; note the post in the fore-

ground (see daylight photographby Mr.

Samuels on p. 20) and new position of
moving lights on hill

the silhouette of the fence, near which the camera and
tripod were mounted, is seen quite clearly and may be
compared with the photographs taken by Mr. Michael
Samuels in the presence of Mr. Ben and Mr. Collins
on January 24, 1971, and reproduced with the article
under his signature elsewhere in this issue.

These lines are designed merely to set the stage for

the “debate”” which follows, in which, unknown to
themselves (until they read this magazine), Messrs.
Scammell, Ben, Collins and Samuels participate. A
debate which demonstrates that perhaps, after all, we
have made a little progress at Cradle Hill, albeit strictly
in our own time. Again, having been privy to the
discussions—and the occasional doubts—of Mr. Ben
and his friends, I cannot agree with Mr. Scammell that
all thinking connected with Cradle Hill is of the woolly
kind, although I am at one with him on the score of
many of the reported incidents.

FSR has always regarded with the greatest suspicion
all reports emanating from Warminster. It was stated
quite clearly in the Editorial article of the July/August
issue of 1970 that the photographs from Cradle Hill had
been welcomed because neither Mr. Ben nor Mr.
Foxwell were connected with the local Warminster
investigators. Indeed the purpose of including Mr.

and it should be
noted that that item was heavily cut from the original
was to demonstrate the difference in approach to the
subject of these two groups. It was felt at the time that
this had been made sufficiently clear in the Editorial
article, but it seems now that that might not have been
the case.

Shuttlewood’s item in that same issue

IMPORTANT NOTE:

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

It is with deep regret that we announce that Mrs. E. Spencer has been forced by continuing ill-health to give up
her valued and valuable work for FSR, a task she has diligently performed since issue No. 1 in the Spring of
1955. We are glad to announce, however, that the telephone connection will remain as heretofore. Please note
that all letters, orders and subscription renewals should now be sent to:

21 Cecil Court, Charing Cross Road, London WC2




MAIL BAG

A SURVEYOR’S CRITICISM

Dear Sir,—Because, unfortunately,
some early data has been distorted,
mis-used and inflated with imaginary
matter by over-enthusiastic local jour-
nalism of a kind that can do so much
harm, it is necessary to look with close
suspicion at any claims deriving from
Warminster. When the Cradle Hill
photographs were published in the
July/August number, | saw at once
that this was a case in which the cold
eye of a land surveyor could establish
some additional facts that might or
might not be relevant, but would at
least be facts.

The punch-bowl in the photograph
contains, as you know, the School of
Infantry, and the surrounding hills are
the play-ground of every kind of
tracked or wheeled vehicle at all hours
of the day or night. It becomes neces-
sary therefore to establish that the light
in the two photographs is at an eleva-
tion that rules out the possibility of a
tracked vehicle on the opposite
hill-side. The street-lamps on the night
and day photographs can be identified,
and by superimposing on the latter
measurements taken from the former,
at first sight the light in the first night
photograph is well above the skyline.

From the gate on the road on Cradle
Hill, from which point the day photo-
graph was taken, a track runs up the
hill (almost on the axis of the photo-
graph) for 0-3 miles to Field Barn
100ft. higher. The horizon of the day-
light photograph is only 09 miles
distant. The right-hand edge of the
daylight photograph as published is
about 0-55in. to the left of the right-
hand edge of the night photograph.

On investigation it is found that:

(i) the night photograph was taken
from an elevation about 100ft.
higher than the day photograph
(in fact evidently from the vicinity
of Field Barn). (This can be cal-
culated knowing the height and
distance of the trees and street-
lights in the right middle-distance
and ground-level at all the relevant
points: in the night photograph,
unlike the day photograph, the
line of street-lights is seen clear
over the top of the wood, so that
this conclusion is quite undeniable.)

* Without more exact measurement,
for which a 6in. ordnance sheet is
required, one cannot calculate with
certainty whether this level is at the
top or the bottom of the rampart:
if the latter the case is even simpler,

(ii) If the first and second positions of
the UFO are plotted on the day-
light photograph with correct
allowance for the above factor
position A is no longer above the
sky-line, and lies instead exactly
on the horizon at the rampart at
the left-hand end of the earthwork.*

From the rampart at this point a
track runs from left to right (descend-
ing transversely along the face of the
hill below the earthwork). If position

B is then similarly plotted with the same

essential adjustment it is found again

to lie with some exactitude upon this
track, which moreover at that point is
in a slight cutting (a common feature
of tracks descending chalk hills) which
could cause a light upon it to fade out
for the observer at this point leaving
only a faint glow or halo as described.

The distance between the two points is

about 0-2 miles and the sighting is

stated to have lasted 1 to 14 minutes
and was apparently stationary for at
least 30 seconds: the speed while in

motion was thus about 15 m.p.h., a

very suitable speed for a wheeled or

tracked vehicle on this rough track.

The “‘car headlights on the distant.
hill,”” correctly pointed out in Mr.

Hennell's article, are in fact on the

same track where it reaches the foot

of the hill. But for the curious shape
of the light in photograph A therefore
we have a clear case of one Service
vehicle following another (Mr. Han-
nell’s) down the track. As to the shape
of the light one has to bear in mind
that the terrain is such that in photo-
graph A any such vehicle could be
either head-on or sideways to the
observer, and that the external and
internal lighting of tracked Service
vehicles on night operations may be
unusual. “The object appeared very
suddenly as if it came through the
clouds™: it was in fact a dirty night, the
observer could have no notion as to
where the horizon was, and the light
appeared suddenly as it came up over
the horizon (particularly so if climbing
the rampart). Its subsequent halts and
hesitations (which as the observer
quite rightly remarked could have
meant that it was merely turning
towards them) are quite in character

since any such vehicle was in that

case not manoeuvring on the ram- -

part but merely following the track
that runs past the rampart from the
main-road at Sack Hill.

with a tracked vehicle manoeuvring on
steep ground.

As | think you are aware, I am not
one of those persons who wish to
discredit any and every UFO sighting.
I have long been convinced that they
are controlled or manned artifacts of
an origin extra-terrestrial or extra-
temporal. It is possible of course that
this light was air-borne—between the
observer and the hillside, at a range of
less than a mile, hanging at an elevation
of less than 200ft. above the guard-
room of the School of Infantry,
unobserved by the Guard (certainly a
bad mark for the C.O. of the Demon-
stration Battalion in that month).
Had the Guard observed the light they
would I feel merely have observed, and
correctly, “There's them poor beggers
in (A, B or C) Company coming down
at last.”

When, as regards position and move-
ment, a land-borne explanation fits
the case so exactly, 1 cannot feel that
the sighting deserves the attention that
it has received, and I must admit to
being somewhat shocked that the
matter has gone so far before anyone
has troubled to check upon these very
elementary points of survey. Had this
been done immediately it might have
been possible to check with the School
of Infantry as to whether vehicles were
operating on that track at the time in
question.

In passing, perhaps I should point
out that Mr. Shuttlewood in the same
issue is in some confusion with his
compass-points. His “golden ellipsoid™
(not 1 hasten to state, on the same
date) 50ft. above ground and “no
more than a mile distant almost due
south” from the same gates on Cradle
Hill, places itself just clear of the School
of Infantry, evidently balancing upon
the hangar-roofs of the R.E.M.E.
Depot. R.E.M.E. also no doubt have a
Guard, unless they hire the job out to a
night-watchman, but in either case
seem to stand exonerated by the fact
that Mr. Shuttlewood apparently
mistook South for North-West since
he states that his “ellipsoid” was, on
the contrary, between Cop Heap and
the Warminster Downs, ‘‘edged by
West Wilts Golf Club greens.” This
last can only mean that one edge stood
50ft. above the edge of one of the
greens and the other edge above the
edge of a second green: unless Mr,
Shuttlewood has again misexpressed
himself as seems more likely.

There is a flock of sheep on Cradle
Hill. It seems that for many if not all
of these alleged Cradle Hill sightings
their woolly type of thinking has
become infectious.

Yours etc.,

S. E. Scammell, East Knoyle, Salisbury,
January 13, 1971,



CONTINUED INVESTIGATIONS
AT WARMINSTER

More thoughts on the Cradle Hill photographs

John E. Ben

IN a subject such as ours it is
inevitable that a certain amount of
speculation and criticism will follow
any potentially important sighting.
This is as it should be, for this is
the only way that the hoaxers and
the genuinely mistaken can be
exposed. Unfortunately, many ufo-
logists are only too ready with their
criticisms when they are not in full
possession of the facts. My personal
belief is that these people are in a
minority while the majority of
investigators have a deep-seated
desire to get to the bottom of what
is a very interesting but deeply
frustrating problem.

I was fortunate enough to be
present at the sighting of an object
from Cradle Hill, Warminster, on
March 28, 1970, and for the benefit
of this majority I would like to
relate the subsequent findings,

concerning this sighting.

When Mr. Foxwell’s film was
developed and Mr. Hazell brought
me the prints and negatives 1 was
dumbfounded; for the printsshowed
an object which bore no resem-

blance to the object as I had seen
it from Cradle Hill. A theory that
seems to explain this divergence
between the photographic and
visual appearance, was put forward
by Dr. P. Guérin in his article in
Flying Saucer Review, Vol. 16, No.
6

On my next visit to Warminster
at Whitsun 1970 I was accompanied
by Messrs. T. R. Collins, S. Hall and
C. Farrow; we were unable to find
any other facts relevant to the case
in hand, as at this time we still
believed the object to have been
over Starr Hill. However, while we
were there we took a photograph
from Cradle Hill at dusk which
shows the contours of Battlesbury
Hill, and the positions of the street
lamps. This was published in FSR,
Vol. 16, No. 4, with my article. This
photograph was taken from the
same position as Mr. Foxwell’s
prints, as far as we could remember.
We are certain that we could not
have been more than 10ft. from his
original position.

Several weeks later, when I next

Under - developed

print of Photo 1:

note the hazy glow
effect

saw Mr. Collins, he put to me the
theory that the object was not over
Starr Hill, but was in fact below
the crest of Battlesbury Hill. This
was confirmed when he drew a plan
of the area and plotted the positions
of the object in relation to the street
lights upon it (see p. 00). This
proved my earlier estimate of the
object’s elevation to be incorrect. |
arrived at the figure of 20° elevation
through taking the street lights to be
near the skyline—we had arrived at
Cradle Hill after dusk and I did not
realise that Battlesbury was so high
(682ft. as compared to approxi-
mately 550ft. at the observation
point).

We were also puzzled by the car
headlights in Mr, Foxwell's photo-
graphs. We had not noticed this
car at the time as all our attention
was focussed upon the object. We
were greatly intrigued by the fact
that the headlights appeared to be
above the street lights, and also
that in both photographs the trail
left by the headlights terminated
in the same place on the right side.

With all this in mind 1 made
another trip to Warminster with
Mr. Collins, and on this occasion
we were accompanied by Mr. C.
Weller. On this visit we were able to
find the area above which the object
had been hovering. We located this
position by the street lights which
line Battlesbury Road at the
junction with Imber Road. On the
slopes of Battlesbury Hill, across
a small field and above the level of
the road, we found a narrow, rough
track. This track could only be
negotiated in safety by a tractor or
a Land Rover, and at its junction
with the road we were confronted
by a locked gate. Nevertheless,
only a vehicle on this path would
correspond to that in Mr. Foxwell's
photographs. Also, we found that



as viewed from Cradle Hill a clump
of poplar trees that line part of
Imber Road partially obscure this
track, and this accounted for the
lights apparently  terminating
in the same position on the right-
hand side in the photographs.

This led to some interesting
speculation as there was apparently
only one vehicle concerned. We feel
that in the first photograph the
vehicle is moving forward, emerging
from behind these trees. In the short
period before the second photo-
graph was taken the driver has
seen the object, stopped the car,
and reversed back behind the trees
(there is no room to turn the car
around). This is pure speculation,
but seems to be borne out by the
object descending and moving
towards the vehicle.

It was felt that locating the driver
would uncover many important
details, but unfortunately in the
available time we were unable to
find out to whom the land belonged.

During this visit we tried a simple
experiment which had been sug-
gested to us by Michael Samuels,
F.R.M.S., a professional photo-
grapher. When we arrived at Cradle
Hill at about 9.00 p.m. on the
Saturday evening, we distributed a
number of light-tight envelopes
containing X-ray film over an area
of about one square mile centred on
Cradle Hill. This was to enable us
to check if there was any area of
unusual radiation, and also, in the
event of any object being seen that
night, to check if its presence could
be recorded on the X-ray film. One
of these envelopes was left at a spot
previously indicated by Mr. A.

Close-up of street
lamp (C on Terence
Collins’  diagram
across pages 16 and
17) with track be-
yond on lower
slopes of hill

Shuttlewood as possessing abnor-
mal radioactive properties since
the reported landing of a UFO. The
positions of all these envelopes were
marked on a map, and we collected
them the following morning. On
the Monday they were processed,
along with a control, by Mr.
Samuels, but none of the films
showed any fogging.

On our most recent visit to
Warminster (my wife and I accom-
panied by T. Collins and M.
Samuels) it was found that the area
around Battlesbury is military
territory though it appears to be in
infrequent use. This leads us to
believe that the vehicle (the head-
lights of which appeared in the
photographs) must have been mili-
tary; and therefore it was impossible
to gain any further details. As for

the object, we were able to speak
to a civilian employee of the army
and he was quite adamant that the
army have no vehicles which would
reproduce the corresponding light
pattern.

Conclusions

When 1 first contacted Mr.
Charles Bowen about this case, I
stated that the object in the photo-
graphs was not how we saw it.
When I first saw Mr. Collins’
impression 1 was again surprised,
for he showed a red diamond inside
a white and purple sphere with a
red periphery. This is not how I saw
the object. Both my wife and I saw
a bright purple ellipse edged with
white. I made this point clear to
Mr. Bowen, but Mr. Collins, being
a professional artist with a trained
eye, might well be correct. In the
painting which he did from memory,
the street lights correspond almost
exactly with those shown in the
photographs. Both Mr. Collins and
Mr. Hall watched the object
through binoculars. They both
“saw” a red diamond at the centre,
though Mr. Hall thought he could
see a purple and red light around it
which was also diamond-shaped. It
is interesting to note how each
person saw the object in a different
way.

It has been suggested to me that
Mr. Foxwell does not exist, a fact
which T am sure will amuse him.
The answer is quite simple; in a
letter to me, which is now in the

The army huts with lamps which form the cluster in Photograph 1 on page 12



possession of FSR, he stated that
he wished his address to remain
unknown—this is surely an under-
standable reaction in view of the
way many witnesses have been, in
the past, been the subject of adverse
publicity.

After almost one year we are still

left with the enigma of these photo-
graphs. The object shown is not
located on or near any path or
track, and was in fact above a
thickly vegetated steep incline on the
side of Battlesbury Hill. I think
this shows that the object in ques-
tion was not an illuminated lorry

or coach with fluorescent interior
lighting and so on. What the object
really was I do not know, but 30
people saw an object from Cradle
Hill that night, and each seems to
have seen it in his or her own way
while the camera has recorded it in
yet another way.

A FURTHER EXAMINATION OF
THE WARMINSTER

PHOTOGRAPHS

Terence Collins

Mr. Collins' report is dated November 9, 1970.

OME weeks prior to the writing of this report, I

attended a meeting of Mr. John Ben’s UFO research
group, which was held to discuss the group’s past and
future activities.

Several items were discussed at the meeting, one of
these being the recent photographs taken by Mr. N.
Foxwell at Warminster, which were later published by
Flying Saucer Review (Vol. 16, No. 4).

During the discussion of these photographs, I became
aware of something that had not been obvious to me
when I had examined them previously, and which 1
thought might prove to be significant. This was, in fact,
the position of the object in relation to Battlesbury Hill,

I had, until then, assumed the object to be at a point
in the sky above the line of the hill, but now the opposite
seemed to be the case and a close appraisal of the two
night shots, in conjunction with the daylight shot of
the hill, told me that the object was, in fact, below the
skyline, and so being a lot closer to our observation
point than we had thought originally.

My natural reaction was to draw up an elevation
diagram, a copy of which is attached to this report, in an
attempt to locate the position of the object in relation to
the hill as accurately as possible.

Initially 1 calculated that the night shots were
approximately 24, in scale, larger than the daylight

Elevation of Battlesbury Hill from Cradle Hill: Showing the two points at which the object was photographed, relative to each
other and two of the street lights on the new road.






















































